ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


I. The Circuit Court committed error when it held that Deputy Brown was 

entitled to a hearing before the Deputy Sheriffs' Civil Service Commission to challenge his 

continued placement on paid administrative leave while being investigated for official 

misconduct. 

II. The Circuit Court committed error when it adopted findings, made by the 

Civil Service Commission, in support of the ultimate determination to award attorneys' 

fees against the Sheriff. 

III. The Civil SerVice Commission Final Order imposed requirements upon the 

Sheriff beyond the authority of the Civil Service Commission, interfering with the lawful 

authority and discretion of the Sheriff to investigate allegations of misconduct by her 

Deputy. The Circuit Court committed error by apparently adopting and incorporating 

those erroneous procedures in its own Final Order. 

IV. There is no statutory or other basis for an award of attorneys' fees in favor 

of Deputy Brown. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The Final Order entered by the Circuit Court of Logan County is the culmination of 

several proceedings in both the Logan County Deputy Sheriffs' Civil Service Commission 

("Civil Service Commission") and the Circuit Court. Logan County Sheriff W. E. Hunter 

("Sheriff Hunter,,)l was informed of allegations of misconduct against Logan County Deputy 

Sheriff James Brown ("Deputy Brown") and the Sheriff decided, based upon the nature of the 

allegations, to place Deputy Brown on paid administrative leave while the matters were 

1 Sheriff Hunter's term of office expired on December 31, 2012 and Sonya Porter ("Sheriff Porter") became 
Sheriff on January 1, 2013. 
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investigated pursuant to the statutory requirements of West Virginia Code §7-14C-1 through 5. 

Sheriff Hunter provided written notice to Deputy Brown that he was being placed on leave for 

investigative purposes on November 9, 2012. Appendix ("R. _ ") R009. During the 

investigation of the original complaints, other allegations surfaced which required additional 

investigation. ROSS-58. 

On April 26, 2013, Deputy Brown filed a motion for immediate "reinstatement" with the 

Civil Service Commission. ROIL The Sheriff responded to the motion on May 3,2013 noting 

that the Civil Service Commission lacked jurisdiction over the complaint and had no authority to 

grant Deputy Brown the relief he requested. R018. Deputy Brown made additional demands for 

a hearing but the Civil Service Commission neither granted relief, nor ruled on, either the motion 

or Sheriff Porter's objection. 

Deputy Brown filed his petition for Writ of Mandamus against the Civil Service 

Commission and Sheriff Porter in the Circuit Court on June 27, 2013 and a Rule to Show Cause 

was issued by the Court. R028. Deputy Brown sought a writ of compelling the Civil Service" 

Commission to conduct a hearing on his request for immediate reinstatement and a writ 

compelling the Sheriff to conclude the internal investigation of Deputy Brown. The Sheriff 

moved to dismiss the Petition. R032. The matter came on for hearing on January 27,2014. The 

Civil Service Commission failed to appear in response to the Rule to Show Cause while the 

Sheriff appeared and argued her motion to dismiss for lack ofjurisdiction. R131. 

On February 10, 2014, the court entered an Order overruling the Sheriffs jurisdiction 

argument and remanded the case to the Civil Service Commission to "make a determination of 

the issues contained in the Petitioner's Petition for Reinstatement ... and further make a 

determination of whether the actions of the Sheriff, placing the Petitioner on paid administrative 
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leave and restricting his daytime movements constitute a "suspension" or punishment triggering 

the requirements of either 7-14-1 et seq. and or 7 -14C-l et seq., and if so, the appropriate remedy 

to correct the violation . . ." R049-50. The Civil Service Commission conducted an 

investigatory hearing on April 4, 2014 and entered an Order on June 19, 2014, R054,. directing 

the Sheriff to immediately reinstate Deputy Brown and directed Deputy Brown to submit 

documentation in support ofhis claim for attorneys' fees.2 

The President of Civil Service Commission, acting unilaterally, without any hearing on 

the motion.for fees, directed the County Commission of Logan County to pay Deputy BroWn's 

counsel the sum of $10,757.48. Neither the Sheriff, her counsel, Deputy Brown's counsel nor 

the other Commissioners were copied on the "award." The Sheriff learned that the County 

Commission paid the award only after Deputy Brown filed an appeal with the Circuit Court 

seeking a,dditional compensation for fees and costs. RI61-62. 

Deputy Brown's appeal of the fee award was dismissed for lack of a final appealable 

Order and was remanded to the Civil Service Commission for entry of a final order which was 

entered on September 21, 2015.3 Before the statutory appeal period expired the Circuit Court 

adopted the findings of the Civil Service Commission into its own final order entered November 

19, 2015, effectively precluding the Sheriff from appealing any of the findings to the Circuit 

Court. 

Sheriff Porter filed her timely Notice ofAppeal with this Court on December 17,2015. 

2 The Civil Service Commission order provided a remedy to Deputy Brown without deciding the 
underlying legal questions posed by the Circuit Court in its Order of remand. 

3 Deputy Brown objected to this Order being included in the record provided to the court. Deputy Brown 
appealed that order to the Circuit Court of Logan County and it is assigned Case No.: lS-AA-2-W. 
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 


The Writ was improperly issued because Deputy Brown did not and could not establish 

that the Civil Service Commission owed him a non-discretionary duty to grant him relief and 

Deputy Brown had an adequate remedy at law. The Civil Service Commission has no 

jurisdiction over internal investigative matters arising under West Virginia Code §§7-14C-l 

through 5. The Civil Service Commission has only appellate jurisdiction over issues decided by a 

Hearing Board. West Virginia Code §7-14C-5. The Civil Service Commission also has 

investigative authority limited to matters arising under Article 14 of Chapter 7. The Circuit 

Court's Order directed the Civil Service Commission to act beyond its statutory authority. 

Deputy Brown's remedy at law arises under both Articles; he is entitled to a pre

disciplinary hearing if he is subjected to disciplinary action pursuant to West Virginia Code §7-

14C-3 and he is entitled to appellate review of any disciplinary action imposed pursuant to West 

Virginia Code §7-14C-5. See generally, Burgess v. Moore, 224 W. Va. 291, 685 S.E.2d 685 

(2009); Alden v. Harpers Ferry Police Civil Service Commission, 209 W.Va. 83,543 S.E.2d 364 

(200 1). If Deputy Brown were, in fact, suspended without good cause, he would be entitled to 

back pay and other legal relief. West Virginia Code §7-14-17. 

Finally, the Circuit Court granted fees and costs against the Sheriff related to the Circuit 

Court mandamus action even though no writ was issued against the Sheriff. The Court did not . 

identify its reasoning or the authority for its award of fees and costs in its' Final Order. Deputy 

Brown clearly prevailed against the Civil Service Commission but obtained no relief against the 

Sheriff by virtue of the writ of mandamus. Any award of attorneys' fees against the Sheriff is 

not justified for the failure of the Civil Service Commission to act. At best, the Circuit Court's 
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fee award punishes the Sheriff for contesting the jurisdiction of both the Civil Service 

Commission and the Court. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

The Sheriff suggests that this appeal is appropriate for Rule 20 Argument and the 

issuance of syllabus points to resolve issues of first impression; such as whether administrative 

leave with pay during an internal investigation of allegations of misconduct by a civil service 

Deputy Sheriff constitutes disciplinary action under either West Virginia Code § 7-14C-l or 

West Virginia Code §7-14-17; whether a Civil Service Commission has any jurisdiction over 

internal investigations conducted in compliance with West Virginia Code § 7-14C-l et seq.; 

whether attorneys' fees are available against a Civil Service Commission for its failure to rule on 

a motion filed with the Commission; and whether a Sheriff is exposed to attorneys' fees for 

contesting the jurisdiction of the Civil Service Commission or the Circuit Court when both 

bodies exceeded their statutory jurisdiction. 

ARGUMENT 

I. The Circuit Court committed error when it held that Deputy Brown was 

entitled to a hearing before the Deputy Sheriffs' Civil Service Commission to challenge his 

continued placement on paid administrative leave while being investigated for official 

misconduct. 

The Legislature has established two separate and distinct mechanisms for the discipline 

of Deputy Sheriffs, but only one mechanism for the investigation4 of Deputy Sheriffs. Deputy 

Brown, the Civil Service Commission and the Circuit Court have disregarded those distinctions 

and created an unmanageable quagmire which resulted in much confusion, delay and expense to 

4 This case does not implicate the situation where a Deputy is under criminal investigation, only internal, 
administrative investigation for violations of Departmental Rules, Policies and standards. 
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the both the Sheriff and the Deputy Sheriff. The investigation and discipline of aDeputy Sheriff 

involves several statutory steps to be completed in sequence. When the steps are taken out of 

sequence the process fails. 

A. The investigative process 

The procedures for the investigation of complaints against Deputy Sheriff is found at 

Article 14C of Chapter 7 of the Code of West Virginia and is titled "Deputy Sheriffs; Procedure 

For Investigation." An internal investigation necessarily begins with a complaint of misconduct 

against one or more Deputy Sheriffs. The complaint may originate internally within the 

Department or by citizen complaint. Once the Complaint is received it would normally be 

directed to the Sheriff to determine how to proceed. Assuming that the Complaint ofmisconduct 

was not directly witnessed by the Sheriff, the Sheriff would normally assign the complaint to a 

member of his Department to investigate and make a determination of the validity of the 

accusation. 

In many investigations it is appropriate to interview witnesses, take statements, 

potentially conduct surveillance, obtain and review records and other documentary evidence 

before conducting an interview or interrogation of the involved Deputy. If the Sheriffs 

investigator wishes to interview the Deputy Sheriff, the Deputy is entitled to be informed of the 

nature of the investigation before being interviewed. West Virginia Code §7-14C-2(b). The 

statute does not require for any notice of investigation unless and until the Deputy is subject to 

interrogation. 

At the conclusion of the investigation, the investigating officer will ordinarily report his 

findings to the Sheriff. "If the investigation or interrogation of a deputy sheriff results in the 

recommendation of some punitive action, then, before taking punitive action the sheriff shall 
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give notice to the deputy sheriff that he or she is entitled to a hearing on the issues by a hearing 

board." West Virginia Code § 7-14C-3(a). 

B. The disciplinary process 

If the internal investigation substantiates an allegation of misconduct, the Sheriff may 

decide that discipline is warranted and issue a statement of administrative charges along with 

notice of the Deputy's due process hearing rights. West Virginia Code §7-14C-3(a). The 

accused Deputy is then entitled to a hearing before a Hearing Board normally made up of three 

Deputy Sheriffs from his own Department. The Hearing Board is required to make findings 

which are binding on both the Deputy and the Sheriff. 

C. The appeal process 

After a Hearing Board imposes discipline upon a Deputy Sheriff the Deputy has a right to 

appeal that disciplinary action to the Civil Service Commission. West Virginia Code §7-14C-5; 

West Virginia Code § § 7 -14-17. Likewise, a Sheriff may appeal an adverse decision to the Civil 

Service Commission. In either event, the decision of the Civil Service Commission is subject to 

judicial review, initially in the Circuit Court on the Civil Service record below and ultimately to 

. this court. 

D. Deputy Brown was subjected to punitive action when he filed his Petition with the 

Civil Service Commission or the Court. 

The controlling statutory process for the investigation of a Deputy Sheriff was followed 

by the Sheriff in all respects. At the time Deputy Brown filed his Complaint with the Civil 

Service Commission, and also at the time he filed his Petition for Writ of Mandamus, Deputy 

Brown was under investigation pursuant to West Virginia Code §7-14C-2. R134, line 20. 

Deputy Brown was not, however, "accused of any misconduct by the Sheriff. See, Brown v. City 
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ofMontgomery, 233 W.Va. 119, 755 S.E.2d 653 (2014); West Virginia Code §7-14C-3(a)("Ifthe 

investigation or interrogation of a deputy sheriff results in the recommendation of some punitive 

action, then, before taking punitive action the sheriff shall give notice to the deputy sheriff that 

he or she is entitled to a hearing on the issues by a hearing board.")(emphasis add~d). "The 

language of W.Va. Code, 7-14-17(a), relates to disciplinary proceedings initiated against deputy 

sheriffs. This is quite evident when the entire text of W.Va.Code, 7-14-17(a) is read. 

Historically, in matters of statutory construction, we have held that the complete text of a statute 

should be considered in order to determine its meaning." Darlington v. Mangum, 192 W.Va . 

. 112, 114, 450 S.E.2d 809, 811 (1994). For this reason, Deputy Brown was not entitled to the 

civil service hearing he requested. 

After the Circuit Court action was filed the Sheriff issued a detailed statement of charges 

against Deputy Brown before the date of the first hearing, January 27,2014. R123, ,13. The 

filing and service of the Sheriff s statement of charges against Deputy Brown was not related to 

the Circuit Court action, but was the culmination of the numerous investigations. R156-57. 

Deputy Brown remained on paid status until the Hearing Board made its fmdings of fact and 

ultimate ruling. 

Deputy Brown uses the terms "suspension" and "removal" interchangeably but they are 

very different concepts. Neither of those terms was applicable to Deputy Brown at the time his 

Petitions were filed however. The Sheriff suggests that the terms "removal", "discharge", and 

"suspension" are separate and independent terms of art reflecting different adverse employment 

actions for which the Code prescribes a hearing process. 

Administrative leave with pay during an internal investigation does not constitute 

removal from office pursuant to West Virginia Code §7-14-17 nor does it constitute a 
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disciplinary suspension subject to West Virginia Code 7-14C-3 or §7-14-17. To the contrary, 

"removal from office" is the permanent and final removal from the payroll by competent 

authority. See, e.g., Hall v. Protan, 158 W.Va. 276, 210 S.E.2d 475 (1974). A Deputy Sheriff is 

subject to removal, instead of termination, for violation of West Virginia Code §7-14-15 which 

provides: "Any deputy sheriff violating the provisions of this section shall have his 

appointment vacated and he shall be removed, in accordance with the pertinent provisions ·of 

this section." Id at §7-14-15(d)(emphasis added). Further: 

(e) Any three residents of the county may file their written petition with the 
thereof setting out therein the grounds upon which a deputy sheriff of such county 
should be removed for a violation of subsection (a) of this section. ... If such 
answer is filed within the time stated, or any extension thereof for cause which in 
the discretion of the may be granted, the accused deputy may demand within 
such period a public hearing on the charges, or the may, in its discretion and 
without demand therefor, set a date and time for a public hearing on the charges, 
which hearing shall be within thirty days of the filing of said answer,. . .. In the 
event the charges are sustained in whole or in part, the order shall also declare the 
appointment of such deputy to be vacated and thereupon the sheriff shall 
immediately remove the deputy from his office and from the payroll of the 
county. Notice of the action of the commission shall be given by registered letter 
to the county court and the sheriff. If the sheriff fails to immediately comply with 
the order of the commission, he shall be punished for contempt, upon application 
of the commission to the circuit court of the county. 

Id at §7-14-15(e). An appeal from the "removal" ruling mirrors the manner and time specified 

for hearings conducted pursuant to West Virginia Code §7-14-17. Id at §7-14-15(f). 

Discharge does not expose a Deputy Sheriff to having his original appointment vacated 

as required if removed. If a Deputy's appointment is vacated, it is void ab initio and has more 

significant consequences than dismissal alone. See, Martin v. Pugh, 175 W. Va. 495, 334 S.E.2d 

633(1985)(civil service fireman with void appointment was never legally a fireman and not 

entitled to any benefits for the years worked); West Virginia Code §5-10-49 (pension plan 

member "removed" or having appointment "vacated" is forever barred from participation in the 
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pension plan or receiving any benefit other than refund of contributions). A Deputy Sheriff 

terminated from employment who is otherwise qualified to receive a pension by credited service 

is entitled to earned pension benefit unless discharged for "less than honorable service." 

Deputy Brown also takes the position that paid administrative leave constituted a 

suspension for purposes of West Virginia Code §7-14-17 and 7-14C-3. Sheriff Porter suggests 

theterm "suspension" is so well understood that it was not necessary for the Legislature to defme 

it. Suspension as commonly understood, at least within the law enforcement community, as an 

unpaid temporary prohibition from working imposed for disciplinary purposes. This 

understanding is consistent with the Rules of the West Virginia Division of Personnel which 

defines "suspension" as a "[dJisciplinary action taken by an agency to temporarily relieve an 

employee ofhis or her duties and place the employee in lmpaid status. 142 WVCSR § 1.3.83. 

E. The Civil Service Commission had no authority to grant Deputy Brown any relief 

The Commission's duties, rights, and responsibilities are statutorily-granted, and it has 

only those powers that are conferred by statute; it has no inherent jurisdiction. Pugh v. 

Policemen's Civil Servo Comm'n, 214 W.Va. 498, 590 S.E.2d 691 (2003); City ofHuntington V. 

Lombardo, 149 W.Va. 671, 143 S.E.2d 535, (1965); Bays V. Police Civil Servo Comm'n, 178 W. 

Va. 756, 364 S.E.2d 547 (1987). 

In Darlington v. Mangum, 192 W.Va. 112, 114, 450 S.E.2d 809, 811 (1994) this Court 

explained that West Virginia Code §7-14-17 (1976) related only to disciplinary proceedings 

instituted against Deputy Sheriffs. See also, Boggess v. City ofCharleston, Va. Mun. Corp., 234 

W.Va. 366, 765 S.E.2d 255 (2014)(applying municipal fire civil service law). Deputy Brown 

had not been accused of any violation or disciplined and was therefore not entitled to be 

"reinstated" or entitled to a hearing on his request. 
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The Civil Service Commission should have denied Deputy Brown's motion for lack of 

jurisdiction and the Circuit Court should have done the same. Because the Civil Service 

Commission and the Circuit Court were without jurisdiction over the subject matter all of their 

its rulings must be vacated and the award of fees and costs overturned. 

F. The Circuit Court committed error by cO,mpelling a hearing be/ore the Civil 
Service Commission. 

The Circuit Court granted Deputy Brown's Petition and issued the writ, styled "Order," 

compelling the Civil Service Commission to hold a hearing on Deputy Brown's Petition for 

immediate reinstatement. The issuance of the writ was clearly erroneous because Deputy Brown 

did not have a clear legal right to the relief he sought; the Civil Service Commission did not owe 

Deputy Brown a legal duty to convene the hearingS that he sought to compel; and he had another 

adequate remedy at law. Syl. pt. 2, State ex rei, Kucera v. City o/Wheeling, 153 W.Va. 538, 170 

S.E.2d 367 (1969). 

The Writ was improperly issued because Deputy Brown did not and could not establish 

that the Civil Service Commission owed him a non-discretionary duty to grant him relief and 

Deputy Brown had an a adequate remedy at law. The Civil Service Commission has no 

jurisdiction over internal investigative matters arising under West Virginia Code §§7-14C-l 

through 5. The Civil Service Commission has only appellate jurisdiction over issues decided by a 

Hearing Board. West Virginia Code §7-14C-5. The Circuit Court erroneously believed that the 

Civil Service Commission had the jurisdiction under its authority to investigate almost all 

Deputy Sheriffs matters. R0143, This statutory authority is limited to matters arising under 

Article 14, not I4C, of Chapter 7. The Civil Service Commission has no authority to investigate 

whether the Sheriff was complying with Article 14C; only whether Deputy Brown was being 

5 The Sheriff does not dispute that the Civil Service has the authority to convene a hearing to determine its 
own jurisdiction, but no authority to grant the relief sought.

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