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

reasons for his suspension from his duties as a deputy sheriff which prevented him from 

performing his usual employment. (A.R.I-I7). 

lThe May 23, 2013, letter was attached to the Complaint as Exhibit E and is in the Circuit Clerk's file but it was 
apparently inadvertently omitted from the Appendix prepared by the Petitioner. 
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On July 11,2013, Judge Roger Perry issued separate Writs to Show Cause directed to the 

Commission and the Sheriff directing them to "show cause" why the relief requested in the 

Complaint should not be granted. The Sheriff was served with the Complaint on June 27, 2013, 

and no Answer to the Complaint was ever filed by said Defendant. The Circuit Court held a hearing 

on August 20, 2013, and ruled that the Complaint stated two separate causes of action for 

mandamus relief which were separate and distinct and Deputy Brown could proceed against the 

Sheriff for a Writ of Mandamus without proceeding against the Logan County Deputy Sheriffs 

Civil Service Commission.3 On September 4,2013, the Sheriff moved for Judge Perry to recuse 

himself, which he did. Senior Status Judge Robert Chafin was appointed to hear the case and he 

set a hearing on the Rules to Show Cause for January 27, 2014. On December 16,2015, more 

than 13 months after Deputy Brown was suspended, the Sheriff issued a statement of charges to 

him. 

At the hearing held on January 27,2014, the Circuit Court ruled that the Sheriffs action 

on December 16,2015, giving Deputy Brown a statement of charges rendered the Rule to Show 

Cause issued to the Sheriff"moot"(A R. 139) and that he would hold Deputy Brown's request for 

attorney fees and costs from the Sheriff in abeyance. (AR.143) 

On February 7, 2014, the Circuit Court entered an Order directing the Logan County 

Deputy Sheriffs Civil Service Commission to, on or before March 11, 2014, set a hearing and to 

hold a hearing on the Deputy Brown's Petition for Reinstatement prior to May 11,2014. (AR.49). 

In response to the Circuit Court's February 7, 2014, Order, the Commission held a public 

hearing on April 4, 2014. The Sheriff did not call former Sheriff Hunter to testify as to the reasons 

3 The Sheriff contended at the August 20, 2013, hearing that Deputy Brown had to jointly proceed against both the 
Sheriffand the Commission and that the Commission only had one member, which was Robert Baldwin. Later it was 
determined by that the Commission actually had two (2) members, which was evidenced by a letter written by the 
Sheriff dated July 9, 2013, stating that Jason Freeman had been placed on the Commission. (A.R.III). 
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for his actions on November 9, 2012, as was noted by the Commission in its "Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law and Final Order" entered on June 19,2014. (A.R.56). The Commission, based 

on the testimony ofLt. Dennis Brown, who was present with Sheriff Hunter on November 9, 2012, 

found as a matter of fact that Sheriff Hunter told Deputy Brown "he was being suspended pending 

investigation" (AR.56) and "that the Sheriffs inaction in issuing proper notice to Deputy Brown 

was unlawful ... and the length of time that Deputy Brown was on administrative leave, without 

action being taken by the Sheriff, was unreasonable." The Commission ordered the immediate 

reinstatement of Deputy Brown to his duties as a deputy sheriff and directed Deputy Brown to 

submit an itemized statement of his legal fees and costs within 10 days for the Commission's 

consideration. (AR.64-65). On June 23, 2014, Deputy Brown submitted an itemized statement to 

the Sheriff and Commission reflecting all legal fees and costs incurred by Deputy Brown related 

to securing a hearing by the Commission. No objection was filed by the Sheriff to the itemized 

statement of fees and costs and on July 22, 2014, the Commission wrote a letter to the Logan 

County Commission directing it to pay the requested fees and costs except those related to the 

mandamus action. (AR. 68). 

On September 8, 2014, Deputy Brown filed an appeal to the Commission's actions for the 

reasons specified in his Administrative Appeals Docketing Statement. (A.R.52-78). On November 

18, 2014, the Sheriff filed a motion to dismiss Deputy Brown's appeal on the grounds the 

Commission's June 19,2014, Order was not a "Final Order", By Order dated May 12,2015, the 

Circuit Court ruled that the June 19,2014, Order of the Logan County Deputy Sheriff's Civil 

Service Commission was not a Final Order and therefore dismissed Deputy Brown's 

Administrative Appeal. The Circuit further Ordered that the Logan County Deputy Sheriff's Civil 

Service Commission enter a Final Order setting forth the Attorney fees it awarded Deputy Brown 
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for work related to the hearing before the Commission and directed Deputy Brown to submit an 

invoice to the Court for the legal work related to the subject mandamus action. CA.R79-80). 

On May 21,2015, Deputy Brown's filed a Motion requesting Attorney Fees and Costs to 

be assessed against both the Sheriff and Commission related to the mandamus action. (A.R.81

95). A hearing was held on said Motion on July 16,2015, at which time it was noted to the Court 

that Corporeal Ferrell had concluded his investigation by the end of January 2013, and submitted 

his report to the Sheriffand it was not until the Circuit Court ruled on August 20, 2013, that Deputy 

Brown could proceed with his mandamus action against the Sheriff, that the Sheriff resumed the 

investigation. (A R156) The Circuit Court ruled Deputy Brown was entitled to attorney fees from 

the Sheriff and Commission as a result of his having to mandamus them to perform their duties 

prescribed by law because "nothing would have been done" if the mandamus action had not been 

filed. (A.R.IS8) The Circuit Court requested Deputy Brown to separate the legal fees into those 

that were solely related to each of the two defendants and those legal fees that were jointly related 

to both defendants and to submit the same to him and he would enter an order specifying what 

each defendant was to pay. The requested breakdown was sent to Judge Chafin on July 17,2015. 

(A.R. 114). On November 19,2015, Judge Chafin entered his Order specifying the amounts the 

Sheriff and Commission were to respectively pay. (A.R.120-130).4 The Sheriff thereon filed the 

4The Sheriff in her Statement of the Case references a document dated September 21,2015. which is not filed with 
the Circuit Court in this proceeding. The Sheriff correctly noted that counsel for Deputy Brown would not agree to 
allow that document to be placed in the Appendix as Rule 6 (b) of the Rules of Appellate Procedure provides that 
"Anything not filed with the lower tribunal shall not be included in the record on appeal unless the Court grants a 
motion for leave to supplement the record on appeal for good cause shown. The Circuit Court's Order of 
1111912015 does not reference or incorporate the findings or conclusions contained in the Final Order of the Logan 
County Deputy Sheriff's Commission dated September 21,2015, as it was filed in the Office of the Logan County 
Commission with the Clerk of the Logan County Deputy Sheriffs Civil Service Commission in a totally separate 
legal proceeding and Judge Chafin had no knowledge of the entry of that Order. 
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subject appeal to the Final Order of November 19,2015, which ordered the Sheriff to pay Deputy 

Brown attorney fees and costs in the amount of $7,262.23.5 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The gravamen of the Sheriffs appeal is that the Circuit Court lacked jurisdiction to order 

the Logan County Deputy Sheriffs Civil Service Commission to hold a hearing on the Petition for 

Reinstatement filed by Deputy Brown. In short, the Sheriff is attempting to appeal the February 7, 

2014, ruling of the Circuit Court that did not order the Sheriff to do anything. The crux of the 

Sheriffs unique contention is that a deputy sheriff's civil service commission only has appellate 

jurisdiction over Hearing Board decisions and therefore since there was no Hearing Board decision 

the Circuit Court erred in granting the Writ issued to the Logan County Deputy Sheriff' Civil 

Service Commission to hold a hearing on Deputy Brown's Petition for Reinstatement. The 

Sheriff's argues that West Virginia Code §7-14C-I et seq., empowered the Sheriff to conduct an 

investigation of Deputy Brown and during said investigation the Sheriff could suspend Deputy 

Brown's right to exercise any authority of the Sheriff's Department or engage in any law 

enforcement investigations, seize from him all his assigned equipment, uniforms, keys, etc., owned 

by the Sheriff's Department, order Deputy Brown confined to his home from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 

p.m. five days a week with no time off for holidays or vacation, and reduce the pay he was regularly 

receiving without providing Deputy Brown the reasons the Sheriff's was taking such drastic action 

andlor providing him an opportunity to respond to the allegations made against him. Most 

significantly, the Sheriff argues that regardless of how long her investigation may take neither 

Deputy Brown, the Logan County Deputy Sheriff's Civil Service Commission, nor the Circuit 

S The Circuit Court also ordered the Commission to pay Deputy Brown attorney fees and costs in the amount of 
$10,744.22, related to the mandamus against it, which was paid without objection. 
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Court had any jurisdiction until the Sheriff provided notice on December 16, 2013, to Deputy 

Brown of the charges she was making against him and that she intended to discharge him. 

Deputy Brown's argument is that West Virginia §7-14C-I et seq. was enacted in 1995 to 

codify the required due process procedures outlined by this Honorable Court in City ofHuntington 

v. Black, 187 W. Va. 675,421 S.E. 58 (1992), that must be followed before a sheriff can deprive a 

deputy of any significant protected interest. Deputy Brown submits that the Sheriffs actions on 

November 9,2012, constituted a suspension in violation of West Virginia Code §7-14-17(a), 

deprived him of several significant protected interests and that the Sheriffs actions on November 

9,2012, manifestly meet the definition of "punitive action" which is defined in §7-14C-l(3) as 

"any action which may lead to dismissal, demotion, suspension, reduction in salary, written 

reprimand or transfer for purposes of punishment" because the November 9, 2012.6 

Deputy Brown submits that the subject mandamus action was the only remedy available to 

him to compel the Sheriff to provide him the reasons for his suspension and absent said action the 

Sheriff would have done nothing as ruled by the Circuit Court. (A.R.1S8). Accordingly, attorney 

fees and costs were properly assessed against the Sheriff for her blatant disregard of Deputy 

Brown's statutory and due process rights that necessitated him having to mandamus the Sheriff to 

comply with the Sheriffs statutory duty in West Virginia Code §7-14-17(a) to provide him the 

reasons for his suspension and an opportunity to respond to the allegations being made against 

him. 

6 The "Notice of Internal Investigation" actually concludes with the statement, "This investigation could lead to 
punitive action up to and including tennination ofemployment."(Emphasis Supplied). 
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STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

This case can be decided without oral argument as it is doubtful oral argument would aid 

the decisional process. The Sheriffs appeal is wholly predicated on her tortured interpretation of 

West Virginia Code §7-14C-l et seq. which will not stand scrutiny. There was an abundance of 

evidence and legal authority to support the Circuit Court's finding that the Deputy Brown's 

Mandamus action was necessary to compel the Sheriff to provide him with the reasons for his 

suspension, and attorney fees were appropriately assessed against the Sheriff. 

ARGUMENT 

A. 	 STANDARD OF REVIEW 

The standard of appellate review of a circuit court's order granting relief through the 

extraordinary writ of mandamus is de novo. Syllabus Point 1, Staten v. Dean, 195 W.Va. 57,464 

S.E.2d 576 (1995)." Syl. pt. 1,0' Daniels v. City o/Charleston, 200 W.Va. 711,490 S.E.2d 800 

(1997). 

B. 	 DEPUTY BROWN'S RESPONSE TO SHERIFF'S ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR NO. 
I THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT COMMITTED ERROR WHEN IT HELD THAT 
DEPUTY BROWN WAS ENTITLED TO A HEARING BEFORE THE DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS' CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION TO CHALLENGE HIS 
CONTINUED PLACEMENT ON SAID ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE WHILE 
BEING INVESTIGATED FOR OFFICIAL MISCONDUCT 

This Assignment of Error relates to the Circuit Court's Order dated February 7, 2014, 

which mandamused the Logan County Deputy Sheriffs Civil Service Commission to hold a 

hearing on the Deputy Brown's Petition for Reinstatement. (A.R.49-50). The February 7, 2014, 

Order did not direct the Sheriff to do anything as the Court had ruled on January 27, 2014, that the 

Rule to Show Cause issued to the Sheriff was "moot" since the Sheriff had finally provided Deputy 

Brown with a statement of charges on December 16, 2013. (A.R.139). The Sheriffs Counsel 

advised the Circuit Court that while he did not represent the Civil Service Commission (A.R.34) 
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that any Order compelling the Commission to hold a hearing impacted her, and she therefore 

advanced the same jurisdictional arguments set forth in this Assignment of Error which arguments 

were rejected by the Circuit Court. Deputy Brown submits that an appeal to the February 7, 2014 

order does not lie in favor ofthe Sheriff and that the proper manner for the Sheriff to have attacked 

said Order would have been to seek a writ of prohibition from this Honorable Court if she wanted 

to prevent the enforcement of said Order. 

Logan County Civil Action No. 13-C-165 involved demands for mandamus relief against 

the Logan County Sheriff and the Logan County Deputy Sheriffs Civil Service related to Deputy 

Brown being told by Sheriff Hunter on November 9,2012, that he had to "suspend" him as he was 

being investigated for unspecified reasons and directing Deputy Brown to be at his place of 

residence each Monday through Friday from 8:30 A.M. to 4:30 P.M., not to exercise any authority 

of the Sheriffs Department or engage in any law enforcement investigations, to cease his 

previously approved secondary employment, and to surrender all uniforms, keys to the courthouse 

etc., without providing Deputy Brown a statement ofreasons for his suspension and an opportunity 

to respond to the allegations against him. 

The Circuit Court at a hearing held on August 20, 2013, specifically ruled that the 

Complaint stated two causes of action for mandamus relief against the two defendants which were 

separate and distinct and Deputy Brown could proceed against the Sheriff for a Writ ofMandamus 

without simultaneously proceeding against the Logan County Deputy Sheriffs Civil Service 

Commission.' 

7 The Sheriff contended at the August 20, 2013, hearing that the Deputy Brown had to jointly proceed against both 
the Sheriff and the Commission and that the Commission only had one member, which was Robert Baldwin. Later 
it was determined that the Commission actually had two (2) members, which was evidenced by a letter written by 
the Sheriff to the Commission dated July 9, 2013, stating that Jason Freeman had been placed on the Commission. 
(A.R. 	Ill). 
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The Sheriff argued then and now that if a deputy files a petition for reinstatement with a 

deputy sheriffs civil service commission alleging she/he is improperly being prevented from 

performing his or her usual employment that the pronouncement by a sheriff that shelhe has placed 

a deputy on paid "administrative leave" because of an internal investigation deprives a Deputy 

Sheriff's Civil Service Commission of the power/authority/jurisdiction to in any way consider or 

hold a hearing on the petition for reinstatement. That is a fallacious contention. 

A Deputy Sheriff's Civil Service Commission owes its creation and existence to statute 

and has the powers conferred upon the Commission by statute, either expressly or by necessary or 

fair implication. City of Huntington v. Lombardo, 149 W., Va. 671,681, 143 S.E. 2d 535,542 

(1965). West Virginia Code §7-14-6 grants a deputy sheriff's civil service commission the 

authority to make investigations "concerning all matters touching the enforcement and effect of the 

provisions of this article .... or concerning the action....of any person in the public service concerning the 

execution ofthis article .... " Clearly the Commission was empowered to hear and determine whether 

the Sheriff had violated the provisions of7-14-17(a) when the Sheriff informed Deputy Brown he 

was suspended and issued him the Notice on November 9, 2012. West Virginia Code §7-14-17(a) 

provides:

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